Westgate Belvedere Homes Community Redevelopment Agency

(A Component Unit of Palm Beach County, Florida)

Annual Comprehensive Financial Report Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2023

Audited by: Ward & Company, P.A. 5725 Corporate Way, Suite 106 West Palm Beach, Florida 33407

Table of Contents

Independent Auditor's Report	1-3
Management's Discussion and Analysis	4-14
Financial Statements	
Statement of Net Position	15
Statement of Activities	16
Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet to the Statement of Net Position	17
Balance Sheet – Governmental Funds	18
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance – Governmental Funds	19
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Change in Fund Balance of Governmental Funds to Statement of Activities	20
Notes to Financial Statements	21-47
Required Supplementary Information (Unaudited):	
Budget Comparison Schedule – General Fund	48
Schedule of Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability	49
Schedule of Contributions – Pension Plans	50
Notes to Required Supplementary Information	51
Independent Auditor's Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards	52-53
Management Letter of Independent Auditor's Required by Chapter 10.550, Rules of the Auditor General	54-56
Schedule of Findings and Responses Current Year Finding and Response	57
Independent Accountant's Report on Compliance Pursuant to Section 218.45 Florida Statutes	58
Independent Auditor's Report on Compliance with Section 163.387(6) and (7), Florida Statutes	59



Ward & Company, P.A.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

5725 Corporate Way, Suite 106 West Palm Beach, FL 33407 P: (561) 697-9468 F: (561) 697-5277

Independent Auditor's Report

The Board of Directors
Westgate/Belvedere Homes
Community Redevelopment Agency
West Palm Beach, Florida

Opinions

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, and each major fund, of Westgate/Belvedere Homes Community Redevelopment Agency (The "Agency"), a component unit of Palm Beach County, Florida, as of and for the year ended September 30, 2023, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Westgate/Belvedere Homes Community Redevelopment Agency's basic financial statements, as listed in the table of contents.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities, and each major fund, of the Agency, as of September 30, 2023, and the respective changes in financial position thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAS) and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in *Government Auditing Standards*, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the *Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements* section of our report. We are required to be independent of the Agency, and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Agency's ability to continue as a going concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date, including any currently known information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and *Government Auditing Standards* will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and *Government Auditing Standards*, we:

- Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
 fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such
 procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in
 the financial statements.
- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
 procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
 opinion on the effectiveness of the Agency's internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is
 expressed.
- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
 accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
 financial statements.
- Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Agency's ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters that we identified during the audit.

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's discussion and analysis, schedule of the Agency's proportionate share of net pension liability, and schedule of Agency contribution for pension and budgetary comparison information be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with *Government Auditing Standards*, we have also issued our report dated February 14, 2024 on our consideration of the Agency's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, grant agreements, and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Agency's internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with *Government Auditing Standards* in considering the Agency's internal controls over financial reporting and compliance.

West Palm Beach, Florida

Ward & Company, P. A.

February 14, 2024

Management's Discussion and Analysis For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2023

The Management of the Westgate/Belvedere Homes Community Redevelopment Agency ("Westgate CRA") presents the readers of our financial statements the following narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2023 and 2022. Specifically, this information is designed to assist the reader in focusing on significant financial issues, provide an overview of the Westgate CRA's financial activity, identify changes in the CRA's financial position, and identify material deviations from the approved budget.

The information contained within this Management's Discussion & Analysis (MD&A) is only a component of the entire financial statement report. Readers should take time to read and evaluate all sections of the report, including the footnotes and the other Required Supplementary Information that is provided in addition to this MD&A.

2023 FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Palm Beach County Board of County Commissioners (BCC) created the Westgate CRA as a dependent special district in 1989 under Florida Statures Chapter 163 Part III. The Westgate CRA's Redevelopment Plan guides the agency's budget and spending in accordance with the Statutes. The Redevelopment Plan is a live document and was amended last in 2017 and includes six focus areas. The focus areas are based first on the mandates of the Statutes, second on the analysis of existing conditions and third on the identification of opportunities and strategies needed to remove slum and blighted conditions in the CRA district. Focus Area 1 – Economic Development & Redevelopment prioritizes activities in the two primary commercial corridors, Westgate Avenue & Congress Avenue by devising strategies and providing programs and incentives to stimulate economic development in those corridors. Focus Area 1 focuses, also albeit to a lesser degree, on the Okeechobee Blvd. and the Military Trail Corridors. Focus Area 2 – Market Positioning highlights the benefits of investing in the CRA District to potential developers and business owners. Focus Area 3 – Housing responds to the obligations of CRA to facilitate the development of decent affordable housing in the CRA District. Focus Area 4 -Community Improvement puts in place a strategy to support crime prevention activities, community events, property maintenance and clean-up. Focus Area 5 – Infrastructure proposes program ideas needed to improve and develop a safe physical environment for residents such as installing streetlights, sidewalks, drainage system and public open spaces. Focus Area 6 - Planning for Redevelopment explores the best strategies to develop, fund and implement redevelopment programs that will improve the CRA District. It is the CRA's intent to revise the Plan every five years. The Agency will continue to use its Plan to develop annual budgets.

The CRA funded the community garden development with \$111,570. The garden and green market provide fresh produce, field trips and education opportunities for the residents of the CRA. It creates jobs and exposes non-resident visitors to the Westgate area. This activity is developed under Focus Areas 1, 2 and 4 by creating jobs (1), luring businesses, residents, developers into the area (2) and improving the community (4).

Management's Discussion and Analysis For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2023

Several homeowners received grants to improve the appearance of their home or address code violations under the CRA's Neighborhood Improvement Program. Residents were able to repair septic systems, replace roofs, install fences, windows and doors, and address other issues to improve their home. A total of \$71,790 was spent on this program, doubling the amount that was spent last year. There is a high demand for roof replacement funding. Insurance companies are threatening to cancel policies if the roofs are not replaced. This program is an implementation of housing activities found under Focus Area 3.

The Site Development Assistance Program provided funding for several housing development projects. A total of \$30,000 was spent. Housing activities are discussed in the Plan under Focus Area 3.

The CRA continues to cooperate with Palm Beach County Sheriff's Office to ensure a solid police presence in the district. The CRA rents a facility in the area for the deputies to use. The facility is located in an area that badly needs the police presence. The officers come there, when needed, instead of driving away from the area, to write reports, use internet and make calls. Their presence and that of their cars have pushed away many bad elements. \$34,000 was spent on this program. The CRA is working with the deputies and the community to devise a plan to prevent crime and address illegal dumping. Staff are working with FPL to install more streetlights in key areas to deter illegal activities. A request for more funding was sent to the Legislative Appropriation Committee. If received, the funding will be used to implement the safety plan. These endeavors are part of Focus Area 4 of the Plan.

In Fiscal Year 2022-2023, the CRA spent \$8,500 to remove vegetation and clean the lot located at 1304 Seminole Blvd. The lot provides secure open space for residents of the area. The open space/park activities relate to Focus Areas 1 and 3 of the Plan.

The agency spent funds to pay for the maintenance of streetlights, vacant lots, parks, preserves and vacant buildings. For the maintenance and operation of the L-2 pump station, \$67,322 was spent through an interlocal maintenance agreement with Palm Beach County Engineering Department. This is twice the amount that was spent last year. These activities fall under Focus Areas 2, 4 and 5.

Many infrastructure improvement projects are being developed by the CRA in collaboration with Palm Beach County Engineering Department. The CRA made a payment of \$1,127,606 to Palm Beach County for the construction of Phase 2 of the Belvedere Heights project to install a drainage system. An advance payment totaling \$6,128,586 was issued to Palm Beach County Engineering for the construction of the Westgate Avenue streetscape project. An advance payment totaling \$2,518,276 was issued to Palm Beach County Engineering for the construction of the Seminole Blvd. streetscape project. The construction of the Westgate Avenue project and the Seminole Blvd. are funded, in part, by grant funding from the Palm Beach County Transportation Planning Agency (TPA) in collaboration with the Florida Department of Transportation (FDOT). Moreover, the CRA continues to fund the maintenance of drainage infrastructure created in previous years to mitigate flooding in the area. These efforts fall under Focus Area 5 of the Redevelopment Plan.

Management's Discussion and Analysis For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2023

The more significant projects are funded with the \$11,000,000 bond proceeds that the CRA received in November 2022. The CRA made its first debt service payment on April 11, 2023. The amount of the payment was \$857,377, which includes principal and interest.

The CRA spent \$12,402 to clean up and fence several parcels of land on Oswego Avenue to further the goal of improving the infrastructure of the community as proposed in Focus Area 5 of the Redevelopment Plan.

Some funds were used to pay planning consultants, lawyers, engineers, and surveyors to process code amendments, design engineering projects, research property titles, prepare surveys and plats to facilitate redevelopment activities in the area. Planning activities are discussed in Focus Area 6 of the Redevelopment Plan.

In fiscal year 2023, the budget grew by 9.2% due to loan proceeds and tax revenues increase resulting from current valuation of residential and commercial properties. The Belvedere Heights Phase II drainage program was completed in 2023. Several other projects are scheduled to break ground in 2024.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the Westgate CRA's basic financial statements. The CRA's basic financial statements are comprised of three components: (1) government-wide financial statements, and (2) fund financial statements and (3) notes to the financial statements. This report also contains other supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements themselves.

Government-wide financial statements: The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the CRA's finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business.

The statement of net position present information on Westgate CRA's assets and liabilities, with the difference between the two reported as net position. Over time, increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the CRA is improving or deteriorating.

The Statement of Activities, and Changes in Net Position are the basic statements of activities. These statements provide the user information on the CRA's operating revenues and expenses, non-operating revenues and expenses and whether the CRA's financial position has improved or deteriorated as a result of each year's operations.

Management's Discussion and Analysis For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2023

Fund Financial Statements: A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The CRA uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate legal compliance with finance-related legal requirements. The CRA's fund consists only of one category, governmental funds.

Governmental Funds. The fund financial statements provide detailed information about the most significant funds – not the CRA as a whole. Accordingly, four (4) major funds are reported individually in the governmental funds, balance sheet and statement of revenue, expenditures and changes in fund balances. Major governmental funds for the year ended September 30, 2023, were:

- General Fund
- Capital Projects Fund
- Revenue Note, Series 2022 Project Fund
- Revenue Note, Series 2022 Debt Service Fund

Notes to the Financial Statements:

The notes to the financial statements provide additional information that is essential for a more complete understanding of the data provided in the government—wide and fund statements.

Other Supplemental Information: In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents certain other required supplementary information. This includes budget versus actual comparisons for General Fund revenue and expenditures and certain pension related information. This information is presented immediately after the basic financial statements.

Management's Discussion and Analysis For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2023

Government-wide financial analysis:

As noted earlier, net position may serve as a useful indicator of the Westgate CRA financial position. The CRA's total net position increased to \$15,234,494 during fiscal year 2023 from \$15,160,351 during fiscal year 2022. A condensed summary of Westgate CRA's net position for the fiscal years 2023 and 2022 is presented below:

	 2023	 2022
Assets		
Current and other assets	\$ 15,633,500	\$ 3,943,558
Assets held for resale	3,156,949	4,080,449
Capital assets, net	 7,736,792	7,923,600
Total assets	\$ 26,527,241	\$ 15,947,607
Deferred outflows from pension activities	 93,209	102,590
Liabilities		
Other liabilities	\$ 291,193	\$ 133,441
Noncurrent liabilities - due within one year		
- Lease liability	76,345	75,774
Noncurrent liabilities - due in more than one year		
- Compensated absences	14,553	15,689
- Unearned Revenue	11,651	-
- Lease liability	212,111	288,455
- Note payable	10,348,079	-
- Net Pension liability	 397,501	 328,268
Total liabilities	\$ 11,351,433	\$ 841,627
Deferred inflows from pension activities	 34,614	48,219
Net Position:		
Net investment in capital assets	\$ 7,448,337	\$ 7,559,371
Debt service	143,274	309,089
Community service	7,642,883	 7,291,891
Total net position	\$ 15,234,494	\$ 15,160,351

Management's Discussion and Analysis For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2023

Net position invested in capital assets, net of the related debt (approximately 49% and 50% of the CRA's total net position at September 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively) represent the CRA's investment in capital assets (e.g. land, construction in progress, office furniture, equipment, vehicle and infrastructure). The CRA uses these capital assets to provide services to its redevelopment community and consequently these assets are not available for future spending.

An additional portion of the CRA's net position (approximately 1% and 2% of the CRA's total net position at September 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively) represents resources that are subject to debt service restrictions on how they may be used.

The remaining balance of net position, (approximately 50% and 48% of the CRA's total net position at September 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively) is considered operations and community services. The CRA is constantly working annually to monitor net position balance. However, the CRA is holding assets (properties) for resale primarily for community redevelopment and to meet future operating needs.

Management's Discussion and Analysis For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2023

Financial Analysis of the Statements of Net Position

The following analysis summarized the changes in net position for the years ended September 30, 2023 and 2022:

	2023		2022		
Revenues:		_			
Incremental property taxes	\$	3,480,912	\$ 2,945,851		
Grants		1,724,760	315,077		
Interest		88,239	2,739		
Rental income		32,340	34,044		
Other		13,171	13,840		
Total revenues	\$	5,339,422	\$ 3,311,551		
Expenditures:					
Community redevelopment	\$	3,393,188	\$ 1,482,145		
Redevelopment projects		1,144,396	1,959,675		
Debt services:					
Principal		727,695	28,532		
Total expenditures	\$	5,265,279	\$ 3,470,352		
Increase (decrease) in net position		74,143	(158,801)		
Beginning net position:		15,160,351	 15,319,152		
Ending net position	\$	15,234,494	\$ 15,160,351		

Governmental activities increased the CRA's net position by \$74,143 representing an increase of \$232,944 from the prior year.

Management's Discussion and Analysis For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2023

As noted earlier, the Westgate CRA uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance related legal requirements.

At September 30, 2023, the CRA's governmental funds reported combined ending fund balance of \$18,487,695 is an increase of \$10,597,129 in comparison to that of the prior year.

The fund balance of the Debt Service Fund decreased \$165,815 for the year ended September 30, 2023. Total fund balance at September 30, 2023, amounted to \$143,274, of which all is designated to be used for future debt service.

The Capital Projects Fund was used to fund CRA improvements and projects. The year end fund balance of \$3,757,419 is an increase of \$3,231,283 in comparison to that of the prior year.

In comparing budgeted expenditures to actual expenditures, the following variances which exceed 10% of budget are considered noteworthy:

- Grant Income was \$8,500 over budget due to no amount included in budget.
- Interest income was \$72,642 over budget due to increase in interest rates funds maintained in Money Market account.
- Rental Income was \$7,340 over budget due to full occupancy of rental properties in fiscal 2023.
- Other income was \$13,171 over budget due to no amount included in budget.
- General government expenditures were \$116,190 under budget due to reduced neighborhood grants issued in fiscal year

Management's Discussion and Analysis For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2023

Capital Assets

During fiscal year 2023, the Westgate CRA's capital assets decreased \$186,808 due primarily to recording of depreciation and amortization expenses, purchase of three computers, fencing and retirement of old computers.

	10/01/22 Balance	Additions	Deletions	9/30/23 Balance
	Datance	Additions	Defetions	Datatice
Capital assets not being depreciated:				
Land	\$ 3,924,003	\$ -	\$ -	\$ 3,924,003
Total capital assets not				
Being depreciated	3,924,003			3,924,003
Capital assets being depreciated:				
	101.000		(* = 0.0)	
Office equipment and fixtures	131,330	15,252	(2,700)	143,882
Vehicle	12,831	-	-	12,831
Infrastructure	4,542,683	-	-	4,542,683
Leased asset - building	348,720	-	-	348,720
Leased asset - equipment*	44,042	-	-	44,042
Less accumulated amortization	(45,269)	(78,552)	-	(123,821)
Less accumulated depreciation	(1,034,740)	(123,508)	2,700	(1,155,548)
Total capital assets	3,999,597	(186,808)	-	3,812,789
Being depreciated, net				
Total capital assets	\$ 7,923,600	\$ (186,808)	\$ -	\$ 7,736,792

Management's Discussion and Analysis For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2023

Capital Assets

During fiscal year 2022, the Westgate CRA's capital assets increased \$423,565 due primarily to recording of leased assets – depreciation and amortization expenses, purchase of cameras for Oswego Oaks Park, fencing and completion of Oswego Avenue Dog Park.

	Restated*			
	10/01/21			9/30/22
	Balance	Additions	Deletions	Balance
Capital assets not being depreciated:				
Land	\$ 3,924,003	\$ -	\$ -	\$ 3,924,003
Construction in progress	15,401	210,171	(225,572)	
Total capital assets not				
Being depreciated	3,939,404	210,171	(225,572)	3,924,003
Capital assets being depreciated:				
Office equipment and fixtures	106,921	24,409	-	131,330
Vehicle	12,831	-	-	12,831
Infrastructure	4,317,111	225,572	-	4,542,683
Leased asset - building	-	348,720	-	348,720
Leased asset - equipment*	44,042	-	-	44,042
Less accumulated amortization	-	(45,269)	-	(45,269)
Less accumulated depreciation	(920,274)	(114,466)		(1,034,740)
Total capital assets	3,560,631	438,966		3,999,597
Being depreciated, net			_	
Total capital assets	\$ 7,500,035	\$ 649,137	\$ (225,572)	\$ 7,923,600

^{*} Restated for GASB 87, as of 10/1/21.

Additional information on the Westgate CRA's capital assets can be found in Note 4 – Capital Assets, in the notes to the financial statements.

Long-Term Debt -

During fiscal year 2023, the Agency authorized the issuance of the Redevelopment Revenue Note, Series 2022 in the principal amount of \$11,000,000 for the purpose of financing certain redevelopment projects. Additional information on the Agency's note payable can be found in Note 10 – Note Payable.

Management's Discussion and Analysis For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2023

Economic Factors

Westgate CRA, a component unit of Palm Beach County, FL, recognizes that local governments primarily rely on property taxes and fees to fund their governmental activities. There is a limited amount of state-shared revenue and recurring and non-recurring grants.

Florida Legislature has increased homestead exemptions and has required all taxing districts to roll back their ad valorem tax rates to meet State mandated caps. The CRA recognizes that future revenue are contingent on housing conditions and the current economy.

The CRA continues to monitor costs, seek other sources of revenue to balance our budgets accordingly. Additionally, our cash position has remained strong and we are holding assets (properties) that are available for resale.

Request for Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of Westgate CRA's finances for all those interested. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests for additional information should be addressed to:

Finance Department
Westgate CRA
1280 N. Congress Avenue, Suite 215
West Palm Beach, FL 33409

Statement of Net Position For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2023

	Governmental Activities
Assets	
Cash and cash equivalent	\$ 2,074,372
Rent receivable	4,790
Grant receivables	1,716,260
Project advances	1,627,969
Prepaid expenses	22,938
Other assets	4,884
Restricted assets:	
Cash and cash equivalents	734,352
Project advances	9,447,935
Assets held for resale	3,156,949
Capital assets, net of depreciation	7,736,792
Total assets	26,527,241
Deferred outflows of resources from pension activities	93,209
Liabilities	
Accounts payable and accrued expenses	\$ 291,193
Noncurrent liabilities	
Due within one year	
Lease liability	76,345
Note payable	561,849
Due in more than one year	
Unearned revenue	11,561
Compensated absences	14,553
Lease liability	212,110
Note payable	9,786,230
Net pension liability	397,501
Total liabilities	11,351,342
Deferred inflows of resources from pension activities	34,614
Net position	
Net investment in capital assets	7,448,337
Restricted for:	
Debt service	143,274
Community Development	7,642,883
Total net position	\$ 15,234,494

Statement of Activities For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2023

	Governmental		
	Activities		
Expenses:			
General government	\$ 3,393,188		
Redevelopment projects	1,144,396		
Retirement of principal	727,695		
Total government activities	\$ 5,265,279		
General revenues:			
Incremental property taxes	\$ 3,480,912		
Grants	1,724,760		
Interest	88,239		
Rental income	32,340		
Other	13,171		
Total general revenues	\$ 5,339,422		
Change in net position	74,143		
Net position - beginning of year	15,160,351		
Net position - end of year	\$ 15,234,494		

Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet to the Statement of Net Position For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2023

Total fund balances - total governmental funds	\$ 18,487,695
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net assets are different because:	
Capital assets are \$9,016,161, net accumulated depreciation and amortization of	
(\$1,279,369) are not current financial resources and therefore are not reported	
in the governmental fund balance sheet.	7,736,792
Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and,	
therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds	
Compensated absences	(14,553)
Lease liability	(288,455)
Note payable	(10,348,079)
Accounting for the Agency's participation in the Florida Retirement System	
- the following amounts are reported in the Government-Wide Statements:	
Deferred outflows	93,209
Deferred inflows	(34,614)
Net pension liability	 (397,501)
Net position of governmental activities	\$ 15,234,494

Balance Sheet Governmental Funds For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2023

	General	Capital Projects	S	evenue Note, Series 2022 roject Fund	No 2	Revenue ote, Series 022 Debt rvice Fund	G	Total overnmental Funds
Assets								
Cash and cash equivalent	\$ 1,661,182	\$ 413,190	\$	414,298	\$	320,054	\$	2,808,724
Rent receivable	4,790	-		-		-		4,790
Grant receivables	-	1,716,260		_		-		1,716,260
Project advances	-	1,627,969		9,447,935		-		11,075,904
Prepaid expenses	22,938	-		-		-		22,938
Assets held for resale	3,156,949	-		-		-		3,156,949
Other assets	 4,884	-		-		-		4,884
Total assets	\$ 4,850,743	\$ 3,757,419	\$	9,862,233	\$	320,054	\$	18,790,449
Liabilities and fund balances Liabilities Accounts payable and accrued expenses	\$ 114,413	\$ _	\$	-	\$	176,780	\$	291,193
Unearned revenue	11,561	-		-		-		11,561
Total liabilities	125,974	-		-		176,780		302,754
Fund Balances Nonspendable:								
Assets held for resale	3,156,949	-		_		-		3,156,949
Prepaid expenses	22,938	-		-		-		22,938
Restricted:								
Community Development	1,544,882	3,757,419		9,862,233		-		15,164,534
Debt service	 -	-		-		143,274		143,274
Total fund balances	4,724,769	3,757,419		9,862,233		143,274		18,487,695
Total liabilities and fund balances	\$ 4,850,743	\$ 3,757,419	\$	9,862,233	\$	320,054	\$	18,790,449

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance Governmental Funds For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2023

		General	Capital Projects	Revenue Note, Series 2022 Projec Fund	t	Revenue Note, Series 2022 Debt ervice Fund	Go	Total overnmental Funds
Revenues:		,	 ,v					·
Incremental property taxes	\$	3,480,912	\$ -	\$ -	\$	-	\$	3,480,912
Grants		8,500	1,716,260	-		-		1,724,760
Interest		73,242	-	-		14,997		88,239
Rental income		32,340	-	-		-		32,340
Other		13,171	-	-		-		13,171
Total revenues	\$	3,608,165	\$ 1,716,260	\$ -	\$	14,997	\$	5,339,422
Expenditures:								
Current:								
General government	\$	2,260,307	\$ 16,329	\$ -	\$	64,525	\$	2,341,161
Redevelopment projects		-	1,134,235	1,137,767	,	-		2,272,002
Debt service:								
Principal		75,774	-	_		651,921		727,695
Interest		3,948	-	_		382,235		386,183
Total expenditures	_	2,340,029	1,150,564	1,137,767	'	1,098,681		5,727,041
Excess (deficiency) of revenues								
over expenditures		1,268,136	 565,696	(1,137,767	')	(1,083,684)		(387,619)
Other financing sources (uses):								
Investment in capital assets		(2,850)	(12,402)	_		_		(15,252)
Operating transfer out:		(3,595,858)	- -	_		-		(3,595,858)
Operating transfer in:		-	2,677,989	-		917,869		3,595,858
Issuance of note payable			 	11,000,000)	-		11,000,000
Total other financing								
sources (uses)		(3,598,708)	 2,665,587	11,000,000)	917,869		10,984,748
Net changes in fund balance		(2,330,572)	3,231,283	9,862,233	;	(165,815)		10,597,129
Fund balance - beginning		7,055,341	526,136	-		309,089		7,890,566
Fund balance - ending	\$	4,724,769	\$ 3,757,419	\$ 9,862,233	\$	143,274	\$	18,487,695

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Change in Fund Balance of Governmental Funds For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2023

Net change in fund balance - total government funds	\$	10,597,129
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different because:		
Depreciation and amortization expenses on capital assets are reported in the governm wide statement of activities and changes in net assets, but they	ent-	
do not require the use of current financial resources. Therefore, depreciation and amortization expenses are not reported as expenditure in governmental funds.		(202,060)
Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures.		
However, in the statement of activities, the cost of capital		
assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives.		
Investment in capital assets		15,252
Repayment of leases is an expenditure in the governmental funds, but		
the repayment reduces long-term liabilities in the statement of net position		75,774
The issuance of long-term debt provides current financial resources to governmental		
funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-term debt consumes the current		
financial resources of governmental funds, neither transaction, has any effect on net		
position. The effect of the long-term debt and related items are as follows:		
Issuance of note payable		(11,000,000)
Principal repayment on note payable		651,921
Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of		
current financial resource and, therefore not reported as expenditures in governmental funds.		
Net change in long-term compensated absences		1,136
Accounting for the Agency's participation in the Florida Retirement System:		
Adjustment of required contribution to net pension expense.		(65,009)
Change in net position of government-wide statement of activities	\$	74,143

Notes to Financial Statements For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2023

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

A. <u>Financial Reporting Entity</u>

The Board of Commissioners of the Palm Beach County, Florida (the "County") recognized that land areas within the County where development and redevelopment were critical to the growth of the County. Accordingly, the Commissioners formed the Westgate/Belvedere Homes Community Redevelopment Agency (the "Agency"). The creation of Agency allows tax increment finance to implement the provision of the County's Redevelopment Plan to rehabilitate the Redevelopment Area. The Westgate/Belvedere Homes Community Redevelopment Trust Fund was established on May 20, 1989, and the Agency began receiving Increment Revenues during the fiscal year 1989-90.

The Agency was created by ordinance 89-11 of the Board of County Commissioners of Palm Beach County Florida. On October 3, 2017 Palm Beach County's Board of County Commissioners (BOCC) approved the Agency's 2017 Amended Plan and extension from 2035 to 2047. Therefore, unless terminated by BOCC, the Agency and its Tax Increment Financing Trust Fund will stay in effect until October 3, 2047. However, the Resolution adopting the 2017 amended Plan establishes a shared revenue process that shall begin in 2036.

The financial reporting entity consists of the financial activities of the Agency.

The Board of Directors of the Agency is comprised of seven members appointed by Board of County Commissioners. The Executive Director is hired by the Agency's Board of Directors.

There are no component units, however, the Agency is a component unit of Palm Beach County, Florida.

B. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation

The financial statements consist of the government-wide financial statements and fund financial statements. The government-wide financial statements include the statement of net position and the statement of activities. These statements report financial information for the Agency as a whole, using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting.

The statement of activities report the expenses of a given function offset by program revenues directly connected with the functional program. A function is an assembly of similar activities and may include positions of a fund or summarize more than one fund to capture the expense and program revenues associated with a distinct functional activity. Program revenues include: (1) charges for services which report fees and other charges, (2) operating grants and contributions which finance annual operating activities including restricted investment income, and (3) capital grants and contributions which fund the acquisition, construction, or rehabilitation of capital assets. These revenues are subject to externally imposed restrictions to these programs' uses.

Notes to Financial Statements For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2023

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Fund financial statements are provided for governmental funds. Major individual governmental funds are reported in separate columns.

The financial statements of the Agency are prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America ("GAAP"). The reporting entity applies all relevant Governmental Accounting Standards Board ("GASB") pronouncements.

The government-wide financial statements apply Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") pronouncements and Accounting Principles Board ("APB") opinion issued on or before November 30, 1989, unless those pronouncements conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements, in which case, GASB prevails. The effect of interfund activities has been removed from these financial statements to avoid distorted financial results.

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the *economic resources measurement* focus and accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, provided they are received within one year. Increment property tax revenues are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements have been met.

Governmental fund financial statements report uses the current financial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Since the governmental fund statements are presented on a different measurement focus and basis of accounting than the government-wide financial statements, reconciliations are necessary to explain the adjustments needed to transform the fund-based financial statements into the governmental activities column of the government-wide presentation. Revenues are recognized when they are both measurable and available. Available means collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay current liabilities. The Agency considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the fiscal year. Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred. However, debt service, compensated absences and claims expenditures, are recorded only when payment is due.

Tax increments when levied for, grants, when all the eligibility requirements have been met and interest associated with the current fiscal period are all considered to be measurable and so have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period, if applicable. All other revenues are measurable upon receipt of cash and are recognized at that time.

Amounts reported as program revenue in the government-wide financial statements include operating grants. All revenue that are not program revenue are general revenue, and include all taxes, grants and investment earnings that are not restricted to a particular program. When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the Agency's policy to use restricted resources first, and then unrestricted resources as they are needed.

Notes to Financial Statements For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2023

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Major Funds

The Agency reports the following major funds:

<u>General Fund</u> – the General Fund is the general operating fund. It is used to account for all current financial resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund of the Agency.

<u>Capital Projects Fund</u> – used to account for the resources segregated for the acquisition or construction of designated capital assets.

<u>Revenue Note, Series 2022 Project Fund</u> – accounts for the proceeds from the Series 2022 Tax Increment Revenue Note. The proceeds will be used for various capital improvement projects as outlined in the loan agreement.

<u>Revenue Note, Series 2022 Debt Service Fund</u> – used to account for the accumulation of resources for the repayment of long-term debt principal and interest of the series 2022 Tax Increment Revenue Note.

C. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of bank checking and savings accounts, carried at cost, and an investment in Florida PRIME, which is presented at fair value based on \$1 per trust share.

D. Restricted Assets

Certain proceeds and project advances from note payable, are classified as restricted assets in the government-wide statement of net position. Restricted assets are not required to be presented on the balance sheets of governmental funds under the modified accrual basis of accounting; however, certain assets of these funds are restricted as to use.

E. Capital Assets, Depreciation and Amortization

The Agency's property and equipment, with useful lives of more than one year, are stated at historical cost and are comprehensively reported in the government-wide financial statements.

Notes to Financial Statements For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2023

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

The Agency generally capitalizes assets with cost of \$1,000 or more as outlay occurs. The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the asset value or materially extend useful lives are not capitalized. Capital assets are depreciated and amortized using the straight-line method. When capital assets are disposed, the cost and applicable accumulated depreciation or amortization are removed from the respective accounts, and the resulting gain or loss is recorded in operations. Estimated useful lives, in years, for depreciable assets are as follows:

	Years
Improvements	5
Furniture, fixture and equipment	4 - 5
Infrastructure	20 - 40
Lease Asset – Building	5
Lease Asset – Equipment	5

Lease Assets

Due to the implementation of GASB 87, lease assets are reported within the government-wide financial statement and valued at the future minimum lease payment. The lease assets are amortized using straight-line basis over the shorter of lease term or estimated useful of the underlying assets.

F. <u>Deposits</u>

All of the Agency's deposits are held in qualified public depositories pursuant to the Florida Statutes, Chapter 280, *Florida Security for Public Deposits Act* and are covered by either federal depository insurance or collateral held by the Chief Financial Officer of Florida.

In the event of a default by a qualified public depository, all claims for government deposits would be satisfied by the Chief Financial Officer of Florida from the proceeds of federal deposit insurance, pledged collateral of the public depository in default and, if necessary, a pro rata assessment to the other qualified public depositories in the collateral pool.

The Agency had total demand deposit of \$2,488,470 as of September 30, 2023.

G. Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the statements of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred outflows of resources. Deferred outflows of resources, represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future period and will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then. For the Agency, deferred outflows of resources are reported on the

Notes to Financial Statements For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2023

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

government-wide statement of net position for pension. The deferred outflows of resources related to pension are explained in Note 9.

In addition to liabilities, the statements of financial position report a separate section for deferred inflows of resources. Deferred inflows of resources represent an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period and will not be recognized until that time. Deferred inflows of resources related to pension are reported on the government-wide statement of net position (See Note 11).

H. Compensated Absences

Compensated absences are absences for which employees will be paid, such as vacation, sick leave, and compensatory time. A liability for compensated absences that are attributable to services already rendered and that are not contingent on a specific event that is outside the control of the government and its employees is accrued as employees earn the rights to the benefits. Compensated absences that relate to future services or that are contingent on a specific event that is outside the control of the government and its employees are accounted for in the period in which such services are rendered or such events take place.

I. Long-Term Obligations

Long-term obligations such as lease and note payable are recorded at government-wide level for the governmental activities. Amount payable within one year are classified as noncurrent liabilities due within one year on the government-wide statement of net position.

Leases

Leases are contracts that convey control of a right to use another entity's nonfinancial asset (the underlying asset) for a period of time in an exchange or exchange-like transition. For leases with a maximum term of 12-months or less at the commencement date of the lease, the Agency recognizes rental income or expense as amounts become due under the lease agreement. The Agency, as a lessee, has lease agreements exceeding 12 months for office space and equipment, which are included in capital assets (note 5).

Tax Increment Revenue Note

In the fund-level financial statements, governmental funds report the face amount of debt issued as other financing sources. Debt issuance cost, principal and interest payments are reported as debt service expenditures. In the government-wide financial statements, long-term debt is reported as liabilities in the statement of net position.

Notes to Financial Statements For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2023

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

J. Net Position

Net position of the government-wide financial statements are categorized as invested in capital assets, net of related debt, restricted or unrestricted. The first category represents net position related to capital assets. The restricted category represents the balance of assets restricted by requirements of revenue bonds and other externally imposed constraints. The remaining amount is considered to be unrestricted. A deficit will require subsequent funding.

K. Fund Balance

Governmental funds report fund balances are classified either as nonspendable, or as spendable. Spendable fund balances are further classified based on the extent to which there are external and internal constraints on the spending of these fund balances. These classifications are described as follows:

Nonspendable Fund Balance – Amounts that cannot be spent because they are not in spendable form or legally or contractually required to be maintained intact.

Restricted Fund Balance – Amounts that are constrained for specific purposes which are externally imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations or imposed by laws through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. The Agency is reporting restricted fund balances in the Capital Project and Debt Service Funds.

Committed Fund Balance – Amounts that are constrained for specific purposes imposed by the Agency's formal action of highest level of decision making authority.

Unassigned Fund Balance – Represents the residual positive fund balance within the General Fund, which has not been assigned to other funds and has not been restricted, committed, assigned. In funds other than the General Fund, unassigned fund balances are limited to negative residual balances.

For both reporting of fund balances and net position restricted when both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for expenditure, it is the Agency's policy to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed. In spending unrestricted fund balances the Agency would first expend committed then assigned and unassigned resources.

Notes to Financial Statements For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2023

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

L. Increment Property Tax Revenue

The Agency's primary source of revenue is tax increment funds. This revenue is computed by applying the tax rate multiplied by the decreased value of property, located within the boundaries of the redevelopment areas of the Agency, in excess of the base property value, minus 5%.

M. Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets/deferred outflows of resources and liabilities/deferred inflows of resources and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from these estimates.

N. Grants

Unreimbursed expenditures due from grantor agencies and reflected in the basic financial statements as receivables and revenues. Grant revenues are recorded at the time eligible expenditures are incurred. Grant monies received prior to the occurrence of qualifying expenditures are generally recorded as unearned revenue.

O. Assets Held for Sale

Assets held for sale are recorded at lower of cost or realized value. See Note 6.

P. Pensions

In the government-wide statement of net position, liabilities are recognized for the Agency's proportionate share of each pension plan's net pension liability. For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the Florida Retirement System (FRS) defined benefit plan and the Health Insurance Subsidy (HIS) defined benefit plan and additions to deductions from the FRS's and the HIS's fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by the FRS and the HIS plans. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value. See footnote 11 for additional information regarding the Agency's retirement plans and related amounts.

Notes to Financial Statements For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2023

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Q. Related Party Transactions

The Agency is a component of Palm Beach County, Florida. For the year ended September 30, 2023, the Agency's increment revenues include \$3,480,912 received from the County.

R. <u>Impact of Recently Issued Accounting Principles</u>

Recently Adopted Accounting Pronouncements

In May 2022, GASB Statement No. 96, Subscription-based Information Technology Arrangement, will be effective for the Agency beginning with its year ending September 30, 2023. The primary objective of this statement is to provide guidance on the accounting and financial reporting for subscription-based information technology arrangements (SBITAs) for government end users (governments). The adoption of this statement did not impact the Agency's financial statements.

In April 2023, GASB Statement No. 99, *Omnibus 2023*, will be earliest effective for the Agency's year ending September 30, 2023. The primary objective is to enhance the comparability in accounting and financial reporting and to improve the consistency of authoritative literature by addressing (1) practice issues that have been identified during implementation and application of certain GASB Statements and (2) accounting and financial reporting for financial guarantees. The adoption of this statement did not impact the Agency's financial statements.

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

In May 2019, GASB Statement No. 91, *Conduit Debt Obligations*, will be effective for the Agency's year ending September 30, 2024. The primary objectives of this Statement are to provide a single method of reporting conduit debt obligations by issuers and eliminate diversity in practice associated with (1) commitments extended by issuers, (2) arrangements associated with conduit debt obligations, and (3) related note disclosures. Management is currently evaluating the impact of the adoption of this statement on the Agency's financial statements.

In March 2022, GASB Statement No. 94, *Public-Private and Public-Public Partnerships and Availability Payment Arrangements*, will be effective for the Agency's year ending September 30, 2024. The primary objective of this Statement is to improve financial reporting by addressing issues related to public-private and public-public partnership arrangements. Management is currently evaluating the impact of the adoption of this statement on the Agency's financial statements.

In June 2023, GASB Statement No. 100, Accounting Changes and Error Corrections-An Amendment of GASB Statement No. 62, will be effective for the Agency's year ending September 30, 2024. The

Notes to Financial Statements For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2023

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements (Continued)

primary objective of this statement is to enhance accounting and financial reporting requirements for accounting changes and error corrections to provide more understanding, reliable, relevant, consistent,

and comparable information for making decisions or assessing accountability. Management is currently evaluating the impact of the adoption of this statement on the Agency's financial statements.

In June 2023, GASB Statement No. 101, Compensated Absences, will be effective for the Agency's year ending September 30, 2025. The primary objective of this statement is to better meet the information needs of financial statement users by updating the recognition and measurement guidance for compensated absences. That objective is achieved by aligning the recognition and measurement guidance under a unified model and by amending certain previously required disclosures. Management is currently evaluating the impact of the adoption of this statement on the Agency's financial statements.

In December 2023, GASB Statement No. 102, Certain Risk of Disclosure, will be effective for the Agency's year ending September 30, 2025. The primary objective of this Statement requires a government to assess whether a concentration or constraint makes the primary government reporting unit or other reporting units that report a liability for revenue debt vulnerable to the risk of a substantial impact. Additionally, this Statement requires a government to assess whether an event or events associated with a concentration or constraint that could cause the substantial impact to have occurred, have begun to occur, or are more likely than not to begin to occur within 12 months of the date the financial statements are issued. Management is currently evaluating the impact of the adoption of this statement on the Agency's financial statements.

S. Subsequent Events

In preparing these financial statements the Agency has evaluated events and transactions for potential recognition or disclosure through February 14, 2024, the date the financial statements were available to be issued.

Note 2. Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Agency's policy is to follow the guidelines in Section 218.415, *Florida Statutes*, regarding the deposit of funds received and the investment of surplus funds. Section 218.415, *Florida Statutes*, authorizes the Agency to invest in the SBA Pool or any intergovernmental investment pool authorized pursuant to the Florida Interlocal Cooperation Act; Securities and Exchange Commission registered money market funds with the highest credit quality rating from a nationally recognized rating agency direct obligations of the United States Treasury; federal agencies and instrumentalities, or interest-bearing time deposits and savings account held in federal or state-chartered banks and savings and loan associations doing business in Florida, provided that any such deposits are secured by collateral as may be prescribed.

Notes to Financial Statements For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2023

Note 2. Cash and Cash Equivalents (Continued)

As of September 30, 2023, cash and cash equivalents included \$2,488,470 of cash on hand and cash deposited in banks and \$320,054 invested in Florida PRIME. Bank deposits are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation or covered by the State of Florida collateral pool, a multiple financial pool with the ability to assess its members for collateral shortfalls if a member institution fails.

Effective July 21, 2010, the FDIC's insurance limits were permanently increased to \$250,000. As of September 30, 2023 the Agency had bank deposits in excess of the FDIC insurance in the amount of \$2,238,470.

The Agency's investments consist of money market funds in which shares are owned in the fund rather than the underlying investments. In accordance with GAAP, these amounts are reported at amortized cost. At the close of the fiscal year, the Agency held investments in the Local Government Surplus Funds Trust Fund ("Florida Prime") external investment pool. The Florida Prime is administered by the Florida State Board of Administration ("SBA"), who provides regulatory oversight. Florida Prime currently meets all of the necessary criteria set forth in GASB 79 to measure its investments at amortized cost; therefore, the Agency's account balance in the SBA is PRIME, although on the occurrence of an event that has a material impact on liquidity or operations of the fund, the fund's executive director may limit contributions or withdrawals from the trust fund for a period of 48 hours.

Florida PRIME was not exposed to any foreign currency risk during the period from October 1, 2022 through September 30, 2023. As of September 30, 2023 there were no redemption fees, maximum transaction amounts, or any other requirements that serve to limit a participant's daily access to 100 percent of their account value.

<u>Interest Rate Risk Disclosure:</u> The dollar weighted average days to maturity (WAM) of the Florida PRIME at September 30, 2023 is 35 days. Next interest rate reset dates for floating rate securities are used in the calculation of the WAM. The weighted average life (WAL) of Florida PRIME at September 30, 2023, is 75 days.

<u>Credit risk:</u> The SBA Florida PRIME is rated AAAm by Standard and Poor's. The Agency has an investment policy that limits investment credit risk by specifying authorized investments to be reviewed annually by the Agency's investment committee.

<u>Custodial credit risk-investments</u>: The Agency has an investment policy that limits custodial credit and interest rate risk by specifying authorized investments to be reviewed annually by the Agency's investment committee.

<u>Concentration risk:</u> 100% of investments are invested in the SBA. The Agency has an investment policy that limits investment concentration risk by specifying authorized investments to be reviewed annually by the Agency's investment committee.

Notes to Financial Statements For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2023

Note 2. Cash and Cash Equivalents (Continued)

Additional information regarding Florida Prime may be obtained from the Florida State Board of Administration at https://www.sbafla.com/prime.

Note 3. Grant Receivable

Grant receivable of \$1,716,260 is due from Palm Beach County relating only to the reimbursement of advance payments for the Belvedere Heights Phase I project. The project was funded by a pass-through grant from U.S. Department of Transportation through Florida Department of Transportation (FDOT). All project design and construction, including single audit reporting, are performed by Palm Beach County Engineering Department, per FDOT request.

Note 4. Redevelopment Trust Fund

The County, pursuant to Florida Statutes, Section 163.387 established a Community Redevelopment Trust Fund. Under terms of the enabling statute, each taxing authority not exempted by statute, which levies ad valorem taxes within the boundaries of the community redevelopment area as established by the County, must allocate to the trust fund a certain portion of tax revenue received from said area.

The amount is determined by levying the millage rate established by Agency against the increment between the assessment level in the year in which the trust fund was established and the current tax year.

During the year ended September 30, 2023, revenue of \$3,480,912 was recognized.

Notes to Financial Statements For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2023

Note 5. Capital Assets

Changes in capital assets during the year ended September 30, 2023 were as follows:

	Beginning Balance		Additions		Deletions		Ending Balance	
Capital assets not being depreciated								
Land	\$ 3,924,003		\$	-	\$	-	\$ 3,924,003	
Total capital assets not							_	
being depreciated		3,924,003		-		-	3,924,003	
Capital assets being depreciated:								
Office equipment and fixtures		131,330		15,252		(2,700)	143,882	
Vehicle		12,831		-		-	12,831	
Infrastructure		4,542,683		-		-	4,542,683	
Lease Asset - Building		348,720		-		-	348,720	
Lease Asset - Equipment*		44,042		-		-	44,042	
Less accumulated amortization		(45,269)		(78,552)		-	(123,821)	
Less accumulated depreciation		(1,034,740)		(123,508)		2,700	(1,155,548)	
Total capital assets							_	
being depreciated, net		3,999,597		(186,808)		-	3,812,789	
Total capital assets	\$ 7,923,600		\$	(186,808)	\$	-	\$ 7,736,792	

Depreciation and amortization expense for the year ended September 30, 2023 was \$123,508 and \$78,552, respectively.

Note 6. Assets Held for Resale

The Agency acquires for development property in economically depressed areas, for the intention of rendering the property suitable for economic development and then reselling it to private sector purchaser meeting certain criteria. Since these properties are acquired with the express intent of resale, they are reported at lower of cost or realizable value. Assets held for resale also include costs incurred to acquire the asset and prepare the assets for resale, such as purchase price, closing fees, surveys, lot

Notes to Financial Statements For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2023

Note 6. Assets Held for Resale (Continued)

cleaning, demolition, judgments levied through suits, cost of construction, permits and so on. Assets held for resale include land and buildings. Gains are recorded as charges for services in the government-wide statements and miscellaneous revenue in the fund financial statements and losses are recorded as community redevelopment expenses/expenditures.

During the year ended September 30, 2023, the year ended September 30, 2023, the Agency donated property held for resale to Palm Beach County. The cost of the donated property was \$923,500.

]	Beginning					Ending
		Balance	Increase			Decrease	Balance
Assets held for resale	\$	4,080,449	\$	-	\$	(923,500) \$	3,156,949

Note 7. Project Advances

Project advances represent payments to Palm Beach County Engineering Department of \$11,075,904 for design and construction costs associated with four projects submitted for funding to the Transportation Planning Agency. Scope of work for projects include installation of streetlights, calming elements such as street parking, wider sidewalks, bike lanes, narrower lanes, and hardscape in the Belvedere Heights, Seminole Boulevard, Westgate Avenue Corridor and Cherry Road projects.

During the current year, \$9,447,935 of the total project advances were funded with the proceeds of the Series 2022, Tax Increment Revenue Note.

Note 8. Compensated Absences

The changes in long-term compensated absences for the year ended September 30, 2023 are summarized as follows:

	F	Beginning					Ending	
		Balance	A	dditions	Deletions		Balance	
Compensated Absences	\$	15,689	\$	2,244	\$	(3,380) \$	14,553	

Notes to Financial Statements For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2023

Note 9. Lease Liabilities

Lease agreements are summarized as follows:

		Payment	M	onthly	Implicit	To	otal Lease	Balance
Lease Assets	<u>Date</u>	Term	Pa	yment	Interest Rate	I	Liability	 Sept. 30
Building Equipment	6/1/2022 3/20/2020	5 years 5.25 years	\$	5,396 1,117	4% 4%	\$	348,720 44,041	\$ 268,722 19,733
Total Lease Liability								\$ 288,455

The building was leased with the terms noted above. This lease will not be renewed and the Agency will not acquire the building at the end of the lease.

The copier equipment was leased with the terms noted above. This lease is not renewable and the Agency will not acquire the equipment at the end of the lease.

Annual requirements to amortize long-term obligations and related interest are as follows:

Fiscal Year Ending					
September 30:]	Principal	Interest		
2024	\$	76,345	\$	6,551	
2025		74,047		9,284	
2026		66,450		10,615	
2027		71,613		14,952	
Total	\$	288,455	\$	41,402	

Note 10. Note Payable

During the year, the Agency authorized the issuance of the Redevelopment Revenue Note, Series 2022 in the principal amount of \$11,000,000. Proceeds of the Note will be used to finance roadway improvement projects with the community redevelopment area established by Palm Beach County (the "County").

The Note will be repaid by tax increment revenue paid into the community redevelopment trust fund established by County ordinance. Interest rate on the principal amounts is 4.1%, and matures on May 1, 2037. As of September 30, 2023, principal balance was \$10,348,079.

Notes to Financial Statements For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2023

Note 10. Note Payable (Continued)

The annual requirements to pay principal and interest on the note outstanding at September 30, 2023 are as follows:

Fiscal Year Ending						Total
September 30:	Principal			Interest		Required
2024	Ф	F 61 0 40	Ф	10.1.07.1	Ф	006100
2024	\$	561,849	\$	424,271	\$	986,120
2025		584,885		401,235		986,120
2026		608,865		377,255		986,120
2027		633,829		352,291		986,120
2028		659,816		326,304		986,120
2029-2033		3,727,742		1,202,860		4,930,602
2034-2037		3,571,093		373,389		3,944,482
Total	\$1	0,348,079		\$3,457,606		\$13,805,685

<u>Pledged Revenue</u> -The tax increment revenue Note, Series 2022, is secured by a pledge of and first lien on the Pledged Increment Tax Revenue Funds. Revenue received from Palm Beach County, Florida in fiscal year 2023 was \$3,480,912.

Note 11. Insurance Program

Risk Management

The Agency is exposed to various risks of loss related to theft, damage to, and destruction of assets, errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The Agency purchases commercial insurance for all material risks of loss to which the Agency is exposed, including general liability, property, automobile and workers compensation. A review of the last three years reveals that settled claims have not exceeded insurance coverage.

Notes to Financial Statements For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2023

Note 12. Commitments and Contingencies

Contingencies

<u>Grants</u> – The Agency has received federal and local grants for specific purposes that are subject to audit by the grantor agencies. Entitlements to these resources are generally conditional upon compliance with the terms and conditions of grant agreements and applicable federal and state regulations, including the expenditure of resources for allowable purposes. Any disallowance resulting from a grantor audit may become a liability of the Agency. No provision for any liability that may result has been recognized in the Agency's financial statements.

Note 13. Pension Plan

As required by Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 68, *Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions* (GASB 68), this report includes the allocation of the collective net pension liability and associated pension expense, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources for each of the participating employers in the system's cost-sharing, multiple employer defined benefit plans:

The Florida Retirement System (FRS) is a cost-sharing multiple-employer qualified defined benefit pension plan with a Deferred Option Program (DROP) available for eligible employees. The FRS was established, is administered, and may be amended in accordance with Chapter 121, Florida Statutes. Retirees receive a lifetime pension benefit with joint and survivor payment options. FRS membership is compulsory for employees filling regularly established positions in a state agency, county agency, state university, state community college, or district school board, unless restricted from FRS membership under sections 121.053 and 121.122, Florida Statutes, or allowed to participate in a non-integrated defined contribution plan in lieu of FRS membership. Participation by cities, municipalities, special districts, charter schools and metropolitan planning organizations is optional.

The Retiree Health Insurance Subsidy (HIS) Program is a non-qualified, cost-sharing, multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan established and administered in accordance with section 112.363, Florida Statutes. The Florida Legislature establishes and amends the contribution requirements and benefit terms of the HIS Program. The benefit is a monthly payment to assist eligible retirees and surviving beneficiaries of the state-administered retirement systems in paying their health insurance costs. Per Chapter 2023-193, Laws of Florida, the level of monthly benefits increased from \$5 times years of services to \$7.50, with an increased minimum of \$45 and maximum of \$225. This change applies to all years of service for both members currently in pay and members not yet in pay. To be eligible to receive a HIS benefit, a retiree under one of the state-administered retirement systems must provide proof of eligible health insurance coverage, which may include Medicare.

Notes to Financial Statements For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2023

Note 13. Pension Plan (Continued)

The Florida Department of Management Services, Division of Retirement (Division), is part of the primary government of the state of Florida and is responsible for administering the Florida Retirement System Pension Plan and Other State-Administered Systems (System). The Agency participated in two defined benefit plans administered by the Division. Beginning with the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014, the Division issued a publicly-available, audited comprehensive annual financial report (CAFR) on behalf of the System that includes financial statements, notes and required supplementary information for each of the pension plans. Detailed information about the plan is provided in the CAFR, which is available on line at:

https://www.dms.myflorida.com/workforce_operations/retirement/publications

The System's CAFR and actuarial reports may also be obtained by contacting the Division of Retirement at:

Department of Management Services Division of Retirement Research and Education Section P. O. Box 9000 Tallahassee, FL 32315-9000 850-907-6500 or toll free at 844-377-1888

Benefits Provided

Benefits under the Pension Plan are computed on the basis of age, average final compensation, and service credit. For Pension Plan members enrolled before July 1, 2011, Regular class members who retire at or after age 62 with at least six years of credited service or 30 years of service regardless of age are entitled to a retirement benefit payable monthly for life, equal to 1.6% of their final average compensation based on the five highest years of salary, for each year of credited service. Vested members with less than 30 years of service may retire before age 62 and receive reduced retirement benefits. Special Risk Administrative Support class members who retire at or after age 55 with at least six years of credited service or 25 years of service regardless of age are entitled to a retirement benefit payable monthly for life, equal to 1.6% of their final average compensation based on the five highest years of salary, for each year of credited service. Special Risk class members (sworn law enforcement officers, firefighters, and correctional officers) who retire at or after age 55 with at least six years of credited service, or with 25 years of service regardless of age, are entitled to a retirement benefit payable monthly for life, equal to 3.0% of their final average compensation based on the five highest years of salary for each year of credited service. Senior Management Service class members who retire at or after age 62 with at least six years of credited service or 30 years of service regardless of age are entitled to a retirement benefit payable monthly for life, equal to 2.0% of their final average compensation based on the five highest years of salary for each year of credited service. Elected Officers' class members who

Notes to Financial Statements For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2023

Note 13. Pension Plan (Continued)

retire at or after age 62 with at least six years of credited service or 30 years of service regardless of age are entitled to a retirement benefit payable monthly for life, equal to 3.0% (3.33% for judges and justices) of their final average compensation based on the five highest years of salary for each year of credited service.

For Plan members enrolled on or after July 1, 2011, the vesting requirement is extended to eight years of credited service for all these members and increasing normal retirement to age 65 or 33 years of service regardless of age for Regular, Senior Management Service, and Elected Officers' class members, and to age 60 or 30 years of service regardless of age for Special Risk and Special Risk Administrative Support class members. Also, the final average compensation for all these members will be based on the eight highest years of salary.

As provided in Section 121.101, Florida Statutes, if the member is initially enrolled in the Pension Plan before July 1, 2011, and all service credit was accrued before July 1, 2011, the annual cost-of-living adjustment is three percent per year. If the member is initially enrolled before July 1, 2011, and has service credit on or after July 1, 2011, there is an individually calculated cost-of-living adjustment. The annual cost-of-living adjustment is a proportion of three percent determined by dividing the sum of the pre-July 2011 service credit by the total service credit at retirement multiplied by three percent. Plan members initially enrolled on or after July 1, 2011, will not have a cost-of-living adjustment after retirement.

In addition to the above benefits, the DROP program allows eligible members to defer receipt of monthly retirement benefit payments while continuing employment with a FRS employer for a period not to exceed 60 months after electing to participate. Deferred monthly benefits are held in the FRS Trust Fund and accrue interest. There are no required contributions by DROP participants.

Notes to Financial Statements For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2023

Note 13. Pension Plan (Continued)

Contributions

The following membership classes and contribution rates, which apply to both the FRS Pension Plan and the FRS Investment Plan, were in effect at September 30, 2023:

	Employee	Employer
	Contribution	Contribution
Membership Class	Rate	Rate*
Regular	3.00%	13.57%
Special Risk	3.00%	32.67%
Senior Management	3.00%	34.52%
Deferred Retirement Option Program	N/A	21.13%

^{*} Employer contribution rates in the above table includes a 1.66% contribution for the Retiree Health Insurance Subsidy Program

The Agency's contributions to the FRS Plan totaled \$37,614 for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2023.

<u>Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions</u>

At September 30, 2023, the Agency reported a liability of \$259,306 for its proportionate share of the Pension Plan's net pension liability. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2023, and the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of the valuation date. The Agency's proportionate share of the net pension liability was based on the Agency's 2022-23 fiscal year contributions relative to the 2021-22 fiscal year contributions of all participating members. At June 30, 2023, the Agency's proportionate share was .000650757 percent, which was an increase of .000015969 percent from its proportionate share measured as of June 30, 2022.

Notes to Financial Statements For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2023

Note 13. Pension Plan (Continued)

For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2023, the Agency recognized FRS pension expense adjustment of \$18,444. In addition, the Agency reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the following sources:

Description		Deferred Outflows of Resources	Deferred Inflows of Resources
Differences between expected and actual experience	\$	24,347	\$ -
Change of assumptions		16,904	-
Net difference between projected and actual earnings on Pension Plan investments		10,829	-
Changes in proportion and differences between Agency Pension Plan contributions and proportionate share of contributions		20,253	(18,519)
Agency's Pension Plan contributions subsequent to the measurement date		8,694	
Total	\$	81,027	\$ (18,519)

Notes to Financial Statements For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2023

Note 13. Pension Plan (Continued)

Deferred outflows of resources related to the FRS plan, resulting from contributions subsequent to the measurement date, will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the fiscal year ended September 30, 2023. The other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense in the following years:

Fiscal Year Ending	
September 30:	 Amount
2024	\$ 7,334
2025	(2,905)
2026	44,008
2027	4,180
2028	1,197
Thereafter	-
Total	53,814

Actuarial Assumptions

The total pension liability in the June 30, 2023 actuarial valuation was determined using the following actuarial assumption, applied to all period included in the measurement:

Valuation date	July 1, 2023
Measurement date	June 30, 2023
Inflation	2.40 %
Salary increases	3.25%, including inflation
Long-term expected rate of return	6.70%, net of pension plan investment expense
Actuarial cost method	Individual entry age

Mortality rates were based on the PUB-2010 BASE table, projected generationally with scale MP-2018.

Notes to Financial Statements For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2023

Note 13. Pension Plan (Continued)

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2023 valuation were based on certain results of an actuarial experience study for the period July 1, 2013 through June 30, 2018.

The long-term expected rate of return on Pension Plan investments was not based on historical returns, but instead is based on a forward-looking capital market economic model. The allocation policy's description of each asset class was used to map the target allocation to the asset classes shown below.

Each asset class assumption is based on a consistent set of underlying assumptions and includes an adjustment for the inflation assumption. The target allocation and best estimates of arithmetic and geometric real rates of return for each major asset class are summarized in the following table:

			Compound	
		Annual	Annual	
	Target	Arithmetic	(Geometric)	Standard
Asset Class	Allocation (1)	Return	Return	Deviation
	_			
Cash	1.0%	2.9%	2.9%	1.1%
Fixed Income	19.8%	4.5%	4.4%	3.4%
Global Equity	54.0%	8.7%	7.1%	18.1%
Real Estate (Property)	10.3%	7.6%	6.6%	14.8%
Private Equity	11.1%	11.9%	8.8%	26.3%
Strategic Investments	3.8%	6.3%	6.1%	7.7%
Total	100.0%			
Assumed Inflation - Mean			2.4%	1.40%

(1) As outlined in the FRS Pension Plan's investment policy

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 6.70%. The Pension Plan's fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current active and inactive employees. If future experience follows assumptions and the Actuarially Determined

Notes to Financial Statements For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2023

Note 13. Pension Plan (Continued)

Contribution (ADC) is contributed in full each year. Therefore, the discount rate for calculation the total pension liability is equal to the long-term expected rate of return.

Sensitivity of the Agency's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate

The following represents the Agency's proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated using the discount rate of 6.70%, as well as what the Agency's proportionate share of the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage point lower (5.70%) or one percentage point higher (7.70%) than the current rate:

	1%	Decrease	Cur	rent Discount	1%	Increase
_	(5.70%)	R	ate (6.70%)	(7.70%)
Agency's proportionate share						
of the net positions liability	\$	442,948	\$	259,306	\$	105,668

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Detailed information regarding the Pension Plan's fiduciary net position is available in the separately issued FRS Pension Plan and Other State-Administered Systems Comprehensive Annual Financial Report.

HIS Plan Contributions

The HIS Plan is funded by required contributions from FRS participating employers as set by the Florida Legislature. Employer contributions are a percentage of gross compensation for all active FRS members. For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2023, the HIS contribution for the period October 1, 2021 through June 30, 2022 and from July 1, 2022 through September 30, 2023 was 1.66%. The Agency contributed 100% of its statutorily required contributions for the current and preceding three years. HIS Plan contribution are deposited in a separate trust fund from which payments are authorized. HIS Plan benefits are not guaranteed and are subject to annual legislative appropriation. In the event legislative appropriation or available funds fail to provide full subsidy benefits to all participants, benefits may be reduced or cancelled.

Notes to Financial Statements For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2023

Note 13. Pension Plan (Continued)

The Agency's contributions to the HIS Plan totaled \$5,858 for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2023.

<u>Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions</u>

At September 30, 2023, the Agency reported a liability of \$138,195 for its proportionate share of the HIS Plan's net pension liability. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2023, and the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of the valuation date. The Agency's proportionate share of the net pension liability was based on the Agency's 2022-23 fiscal year contributions relative to the 2021-22 fiscal year contributions of all participating members. At June 30, 2023, the Agency's proportionate share was .000870173 percent, which was an increase of .00000845 percent from its proportionate share measured as of June 30, 2022.

For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2023, the Agency recognized HIS pension expense adjustment of \$46,564. In addition the Agency reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred in flows of resources related to pensions from the following sources:

Notes to Financial Statements For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2023

Note 13. Pension Plan (Continued)

Description		Deferred Outflows of Resources	Deferred Inflows of Resources
Differences between expected and actual experience	\$	2,024	\$ (324)
Change of assumptions		3,633	(11,975)
Net difference between projected and actual earnings on HIS Plan investments		71	-
Changes in proportion and differences between Agency HIS Plan contributions and proportionate share of contributions		4,715	(3,796)
Agency Pension Plan contributions subsequent to the measurement date		1,739	
Total	\$	12,182	\$ (16,095)

Deferred outflows of resources related to the HIS Plan, resulting from the Agency's contributions to the HIS Plan subsequent to the measurement date, will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the fiscal year ended September 30, 2023. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to the HIS Plan will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Fiscal Year Ending	
September 30:	 Amount
2024	\$ (988)
2025	(599)
2026	(996)
2027	(1,954)
2028	(1,035)
Thereafter	 (80)
Total	(5,652)

Notes to Financial Statements For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2023

Note 13. Pension Plan (Continued)

<u>Actuarial Assumptions</u> – The total pension liability in the July 1, 2023, actuarial valuation was determined using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement:

Valuation date July 1, 2023 Measurement date June 30, 2023

Inflation 2.40%

Salary increases 3.25%, including inflation

Discount Rate 3.65% Municipal bond rate 3.65%

Actuarial Cost Method Individual Entry Age

Mortality rates were based on the Generational PUB-2010 with Projection Scale MP-2018.

Actuarial valuations for the HIS Program are conducted biennially. The July 1, 2023, HIS valuation is the most recent actuarial valuation and was used to develop the liabilities for the June 30, 2023, financial reporting. Liabilities originally calculated as of the actuarial valuation date have been recalculated as of a later GASB Measurement Date using standard actuarial roll forward procedures.

The actuarial assumptions that determined the total pension liability as of June 30, 2023 were based on certain results of an actuarial experience study for the period July 1, 2013 through June 30, 2018.

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 3.65%. In general, the discount rate for calculating the total pension liability under GASB 67 is equal to the single rate equivalent to discounting at the long-term expected rate of return for benefit payments prior to the projected depletion date. Because the HIS benefit is essentially funded on a pay-as-you-go basis, the depletion date is considered to be immediate. The single equivalent discount rate is equal to the municipal bond rate selected by the FRS Actuarial Assumption Conference. The change in discount rate is due to changes in the applicable municipal bond index.

Notes to Financial Statements For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2023

Note 13. Pension Plan (Continued)

<u>Sensitivity of the Agency's Proportionate Share of the Net Position Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate</u>

The following represents the Agency's proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated using the discount rate of 3.65%, as well as what the Agency's proportionate share of the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage point lower (2.65%) or one percentage point higher (4.65%) than the current rate:

	- , -	Decrease 2.65%)	Current Discount Rate (3.65%)			(4.65%)
Agency's proportionate share		·				· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
of the net positions liability	\$	157,659	\$	138,195	\$	122,061

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Detailed information regarding the HIS Plan's fiduciary net position is available in the separately issued FRS Pension Plan and Other State-Administered Systems Comprehensive Annual Financial Report.

Required Supplementary Information Budget Comparison Schedule - (Unaudited) General Fund For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2023

	Budget Original/ Final		Actual	F	Variance Favorable nfavorable)
Revenues:					
Incremental property taxes	\$ 3,480,619	\$	3,480,912	\$	293
Grant	-		8,500		8,500
Interest	600)	73,242		72,642
Rental income	25,000)	32,340		7,340
Other			13,171		13,171
Total revenues	3,506,219)	3,608,165		101,946
Expenditures: Current:					
General government Debt Service:	\$ 2,456,219	\$	2,260,307	\$	195,912
Principal	-		79,722		(79,722)
Total expenditures	2,456,219)	2,340,029		116,190
Excess of revenues over expenditures	1,050,000)	1,268,136		218,136
Other financing sources (uses):					
Investment in capital assets	-		(2,850)		(348,720)
Operating transfer in (out):	(1,250,000))	(3,595,858)		-
Total other financing sources (uses)	(1,250,000))	(3,598,708)		
Net changes in fund balance	\$ (200,000))	(2,330,572)	\$	218,136
Fund balance - beginning			7,055,341		
Fund balance - ending		\$	4,724,769	<u>.</u>	

See Notes to Required Supplementary Information.

Required Supplementary Information Schedule of Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability

For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2023

Florida Retirement System

		2023		2022		2021		2020		2019*		2018		2017**		2016		2015		2014
Proportion of the net pension liability (asset)	0	.000650757	0	.000634788	(0.000614088		0.000528206	(0.000742911	(0.000763432	(0.000741665	C	0.000714252	(0.000751062		0.000756805
Proportionate share of the net pension liability (asset)	\$	259,306	\$	236,192	\$	46,387	\$	228,932	\$	255,848	\$	229,950	\$	219,380	\$	180,349	\$	97,010	\$	46,176
Covered-employee payroll	\$	352,887	\$	322,011	\$	307,053	\$	300,120	\$	308,132	\$	300,595	\$	284,717	\$	272,642	\$	225,123	\$	297,851
Proportionate share of the net pension liability (asset) as a percentage of its covered-employee payroll		73.48%		73.35%		15.11%		76.28%		83.03%		76.50%		77.05%		66.15%		43.09%		15.50%
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total pension liability		82.38%		82.89%		96.40%		78.85%		82.61%		84.26%		83.89%		84.88%		92.00%		96.09%
Health Insurance Subsidy Program																				
		2023		2022	2021		2020			2019		2018		2017		2016	2015		2014	
Proportion of the net pension liability (asset)	0	.000870173	0	.000869328	(0.000854184		0.000812188	(0.000892173	(0.000885052	(0.000847238	C	0.000808229	(0.000866528		0.001024079
Proportionate share of the net pension liability (asset)	\$	138,195	\$	92,076	\$	104,779	\$	99,167	\$	99,825	\$	93,675	\$	90,591	\$	94,196	\$	88,372	\$	95,754
Covered-employee payroll	\$	352,887	\$	322,011	\$	307,053	\$	300,120	\$	308,132	\$	300,595	\$	284,717	\$	272,642	\$	225,123	\$	297,851
Proportionate share of the net pension liability (asset) as a percentage of its covered-employee payroll		39.16%		28.59%		34.12%		33.04%		32.40%		31.16%		31.82%		34.55%		39.25%		32.15%
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total pension liability		4.12%		4.81%		3.56%		3.00%		2.63%		2.15%		1.64%		0.97%		0.50%		0.99%

Note 1: GASB 68 requires information for 10 years. However, until a full 10-year trend is compiled, information will be compiled for each year as it becomes available.

^{**} Net Pension Liability at 2017 was restated due to implementation of GASB 75.

See Notes to Required Supplementary Information.

Required Supplementary Information Schedule of Contributions - Pension Plans

For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2023

Florida Retirement System

		2023		2022		2021		2020		2019		2018		2017		2016		2015		2014	
Contractually required contribution	\$	37,614	\$	35,484	\$	26,228	\$	20,522	\$	22,094	\$	21,757	\$	19,307	\$	17,418	\$	18,312	\$	16,577	
Contributions in relation to the																					
contractually required contribution	\$	(37,614)	\$	(35,484)	\$	(26,228)	\$	(20,522)	\$	(22,094)	\$	(21,757)	\$	(19,307)	\$	(17,418)	\$	(18,312)	\$	(16,577)	
Contributions deficiency (excess)	\$	-	\$	-	\$		\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$		
Agency's covered-employee payroll	\$	352,887	\$	322,011	\$	307,053	\$	300,120	\$	308,132	\$	300,595	\$	284,717	\$	272,642	\$	225,123	\$	297,851	
Contributions as a percentage of covered-employee payroll		10.66%		11.02%		8.54%		6.84%		7.17%		7.24%		6.78%		6.39%		8.13%		5.57%	
											Hea	lth Insuran	ce Sı	ıbsidy Prog	ram						
		2023		2022		2021		2020		2019		2018		2017		2016		2015		2014	
Contractually required contribution Contributions in relation to the	\$																				
Contributions in relation to the	φ	5,858	\$	5,345	\$	5,097	\$	4,982	\$	5,115	\$	4,800	\$	4,484	\$	4,143	\$	3,312	\$	3,508	
contractually required contribution	\$	(5,858)	\$	5,345	\$	5,097	\$	4,982	\$ \$,	\$ \$	4,800 (4,800)	\$ \$	4,484	\$	4,143	\$	3,312 (3,312)	\$	3,508	
		,		ŕ		ŕ		•		,	·	,		,		•					
contractually required contribution		,		ŕ		ŕ		•		,	·	,		,		•	\$				

Note 1: GASB 68 requires information for 10 years. However, until a full 10-year trend is compiled, information will be completed for each year as it becomes available. See Notes to Required Supplementary Information.

Notes to Required Supplementary Information For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2023

Budgetary Information

The budget is adopted on a basis consistent with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

The Agency's Board of Directors adopts the ensuing year's operating budget prior to September 30th, each year. The budget includes proposed expenditures and the means of financing them. Budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principles. The budget control is total expenditures since there are no departments.

Pension Plan Schedules – See Note C:

Benefit changes: There were no Florida Retirement System (FRS) benefit changes noted that affected the 2023 valuation.

Senate Bill 7024 increased the level of monthly benefits from \$5.00 time years of service to \$7.50, with an increased minimum of \$45.00 and maximum of \$225.00. This change applies to all years of service for both members currently in pay and members not yet in pay.

Changes in actuarial assumptions: The following change was noted that affected the 2023 assumptions:

• HIS: The municipal bond rate used to determine total pension liability was increased from 3.54% to 3.65%.



Ward & Company, P.A.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

5725 Corporate Way, Suite 106 West Palm Beach, FL 33407 P: (561) 697-9468 F: (561) 697-5277

Independent Auditor's Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards

To the Board of Directors of Westgate/Belvedere Homes Community Redevelopment Agency West Palm Beach, Florida

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities and each major fund of Westgate/Belvedere Homes Community Redevelopment Agency (the "Agency"), a component unit of Palm Beach County, Florida, as of and for the year ended September 30, 2023, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Agency's basic financial statements and have issued our report, thereon dated February 14, 2024.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the Agency's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Agency's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Agency's internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the agency's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Westgate/Belvedere Homes Page 2

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weakness or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Agency's financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under *Government Auditing Standards*.

In addition, we issued a management letter to management of the agency dated February 14, 2024, as required by the rules of the Auditor General of the State of Florida.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Agency's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Agency's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purposes.

West Palm Beach, Florida

Ward & Company, P. A.

February 14, 2024



Ward & Company, P.A.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

5725 Corporate Way, Suite 106 West Palm Beach, FL 33407 P: (561) 697-9468 F: (561) 697-5277

MANAGEMENT LETTER OF INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REQUIRED BY CHAPTER 10.550, RULES OF THE AUDITOR GENERAL

To the Board of Directors of the Westgate/Belvedere Homes Community Redevelopment Agency:

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the basic financial statements of the governmental activities and each major fund of Westgate/Belvedere Homes Community Redevelopment Agency, as of and for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2023, and have issued our report thereon dated February 14, 2024.

Auditor's Responsibility

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in *Government Auditing Standards*, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and chapter 10.550, Rules of the Auditor General.

Other Reporting Requirements

We have issued our Independent Auditor's Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards. Disclosures in that report, which is dated February 14, 2024, should be considered in conjunction with this management letter.

Prior Audit Findings

• Section 10.554 (1)(i)1, The Rules of the Auditor General, requires that we determine whether or not corrective actions have been taken to address findings and recommendations made in the preceding annual financial audit report. There were no findings and recommendations made in the preceding annual financial audit report.

Official Title and Legal Authority

• Section 10.554(1)(i)4, Rules of the Auditor General, requires that the name or official title and legal authority for the primary government and each component unit of the reporting entity be disclosed in this management letter, unless disclosed in the notes to the financial statement. Such disclosures are made in Note 1 of the Agency's Financial Statements. The official title of the entity is Westgate/Belvedere Homes Community Redevelopment Agency.

Financial Condition and Management

- Section 10.554(1)(i)5a and 10.556(7), Rules of the Auditor General, require us to apply appropriate procedures and communicate the results of our determination as to whether or not the Agency has met one or more of the conditions described in Section 218.503(1), Florida Statutes, and to identify the specific condition met. In connection with our audit, we determined that the Westgate/Belvedere Homes Community Redevelopment Agency did not meet any of the conditions described in Section 218.503(1), Florida Statutes.
- Pursuant to Sections 10.554 (1)(i)5b and 10.556(8), Rules of the Auditor General we applied financial condition assessment procedures for the Agency. It is management's responsibility to monitor the Westgate/Belvedere Homes Community Redevelopment Agency's financial condition, and our financial condition assessment was based in part on representations made by management and the review of financial information provided by the same. The financial condition assessment was done as of the fiscal year-end.
- Section 10.554 (1)(i)2, Rules of the Auditor General, requires that we communicate any recommendations to improve financial management. In connection with our audit, we did not have any such recommendations.

Specific Information

As required by Section 218.39(3)(c), Florida Statutes, and Section 10.554(1)(i)6, Rules of the Auditor General, the Agency reported:

- a. A total of 4 employees compensated in the last period of the Agency's fiscal year.
- b. A total of 7 independent contractors to whom nonemployee compensation was paid in the last month of the Agency's fiscal year.
- c. Compensation earned by or awarded to employees, whether paid or accrued, regardless of contingency totaled \$351,751 for the fiscal year.
- d. Compensation earned by or awarded to nonemployee independent contractors, whether paid or accrued, regardless of contingency totaled \$194,535 for the fiscal year.
- e. The following is a list of construction projects with a total cost of at least \$65,000 approved by the Agency that is scheduled to begin on or after October 1 of the fiscal year being reported:

Project Name	Project Expenditures for FYE 9/30/2023
Cherry Road - LAP	\$ 111,667

f. A budget variance based on the budget adopted under Section 189.016(4), Florida Statutes, before the beginning of the fiscal year being reported on Required Supplementary Information Budget Comparison Schedule on page 46. There were no budget amendments during the fiscal year.

Additional Matters

• Section 10.554(1)(i)3., Rules of the Auditor General, requires us to communicate noncompliance with provisions of contracts or grant agreements, or abuse, that have occurred, or are likely to have occurred, that have an effect on the financial statements that is less than material but which warrants the attention of those charged with governance. In conjunction with our audit, we did not have any such findings.

Purpose of This Letter

Our management letter is intended solely for the information and use of the Legislative Auditing Committee, members of the Florida Senate and the Florida House of Representatives, the Florida Auditor General, Federal and other granting agencies and applicable management, and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

West Palm Beach, FL

Ward & Company, P. A.

February 14, 2024

Management Letter in accordance with the Rules of the Auditor General of the State of Florida

Current Year Findings and Response

Current Year Findings:
None noted.
Prior Year Finding:
None noted.



Ward & Company, P.A.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

5725 Corporate Way, Suite 106 West Palm Beach, FL 33407 P: (561) 697-9468 F: (561) 697-5277

Independent Accountant's Report on Compliance Pursuant To Section 218.415 Florida Statutes

The Board of Directors
Westgate/Belvedere Homes
Community Redevelopment Agency
West Palm Beach, Florida

We have examined the policies, investment committee minutes and financial documents of Westgate Belvedere Homes Community Redevelopment Agency in compliance with Section 218.415, Florida Statutes, regarding the investment of public funds during the year ended September 30, 2023. Management is responsible for the Agency's compliance with those requirements. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Agency's compliance based on our examination.

Our examination was conducted in accordance with attestation standards established by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants and, accordingly, included examining, on a test basis, evidence about the Agency's compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our examination provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our examination does not provide a legal determination on the Agency's compliance with specified requirements.

In our opinion, the Agency complied, in all material respects, with the aforementioned requirements for the year ended September 30, 2023.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Agency and the Auditor General, State of Florida, and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

West Palm Beach, Florida

Ward & Company, P. A.

February 14, 2024



Ward & Company, P.A.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

5725 Corporate Way, Suite 106 West Palm Beach, FL 33407 P: (561) 697-9468 F: (561) 697-5277

Independent Accountant's Report on Compliance with Sections 163.387(6) and (7), Florida Statutes

To the Board of Directors Westgate/Belvedere Homes Community Redevelopment Agency West Palm Beach, Florida

We have examined the Westgate/Belvedere Homes Community Redevelopment Agency (the Agency), a ComponentUnit of Palm Beach County, Florida compliance with Sections 163.387(6) and (7), Florida Statutes regarding the redevelopment trust fund during the year ended September 30, 2023. Management is responsible for the Agency's compliance with those requirements. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Agency's compliance based on our examination.

Our examination was conducted in accordance with attestation standards established by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants and, accordingly, included examining, on a test basis, evidence about the Agency's compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our examination provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our examination does not provide a legal determination on the Agency's compliance with specified requirements.

In our opinion, the Agency complied, in all material respects, with the aforementioned requirements for the year ended September 30, 2023.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Florida Legislative Auditing Committee, members of the Florida Senate and the Florida House of Representatives, the Florida Auditor General, and the Board of Directors and management of the Agency, and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Ward & Company, P. A.

West Palm Beach, Florida February 14, 2024